
 

 
 
 

Regular Council Meeting 
Tuesday, November 17, 2020 at 7:00 pm 

 

                          “Excellence in Service to the Rendezvous City” 
 

1) Call to order. 
 
2) Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3) Invocation. 
 
4) Roll call: Ward I: Kyle Larson, Cory Rota 

Ward II: Karla Borders, Rebecca Schatza 
Ward III: Mike Bailey, Tim Hancock  

 
5) Declaration of quorum. 

 
6) Approval of the Agenda. 

 
7) Communication from the Floor – Citizen’s Comments. 
 
8) Consent Agenda:   

• Approval of the Minutes – November 3, 2020 Regular Council Meeting.  
• Approval of the Minutes – November 3, 2020 Executive Session. 
• Approval of the Minutes – November 17, 2020 Finance Committee Meeting. 
• Approval of the Finance Committee Recommendations – November 17, 2020. 
• Approval of the Municipal Court Report for the month of October 2020. 
• Replat: Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton, Wyoming; Petitioner: 

Diversified Investments, LLC 
 
9) Public Hearing & Consideration of Sale of Property: 5010 Cessna Drive. 
 
10) EDGE Committee Appointment. 
 
11) Rendezvous Balloon Committee Request to Transfer Funds. 
 
12) Consideration of Consultant Selection Policy. 
 
Reports and Comments: 
13) Council Committee Reports and Council Members’ Roundtable. 
14) City Administrator’s Report. 
15) Mayor’s Comments. 
16) Executive Session – If needed.  
17) Adjourn. 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3 November 3, 2020 

RIVERTON CITY COUNCIL 
Minutes of the 

Regular Council Meeting 
Held November 3, 2020 

7:00 PM 
 

The regular meeting of the Riverton City Council was held on the above date and time, duly convened by Mayor 
Richard P. Gard at 7:00 p.m.  City Council Members present were Karla Borders, Tim Hancock, Mike Bailey, Rebecca 
Schatza, Kyle Larson and Cory Rota. Council Member Larson led the pledge of allegiance and Mayor Gard conducted 
the invocation. 
  
Roll call was conducted. Council Member Schatza moved, seconded by Council Member Hancock to excuse Council 
Member Borders from tonight’s meeting. Motion passed unanimously. Mayor Gard declared a quorum of the Council.   
 
City Staff present: City Administrator Tony Tolstedt, Public Works Director Kyle Butterfield, Police Captain Wes 
Romero, Finance Director Mia Harris, Community Development Director Eric P. Carr, and Administrative 
Assistant/Deputy City Clerk Megan Sims. 
 
Approval of the Agenda – Council Member Larson moved, seconded by Council Member Schatza to approve the 
agenda as presented. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Communication from the Floor/Response to Citizen’s Comments – None. 
 
Consent Agenda – Deputy City Clerk/Administrative Assistant Megan Sims read the consent agenda items by title 
only: Approval of the Minutes – October 20, 2020 Regular Council Meeting; Approval of the Minutes –  November 
3, 2020 Finance Committee Meeting;  and Approval of the Finance Committee Recommendations – November 3, 
2020 claims to be paid in the amount of $1,190,618.22, manual check in the amount of $12.46 and payroll & liabilities 
for 10/23/20 and 10/27/20 in the amount of $449,177.56 for a total of $1,639,808.24. Council Member Schatza moved, 
seconded by Council Member Bailey to approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Public Hearing & Consideration of Fireworks Permit Application: Holiday Festival – Deputy City 
Clerk/Administrative Assistant Megan Sims reported on the fireworks permit application submitted by R Recreation 
for a firework show to be held at Tonkin Stadium on December 18, 2020 from 5:30 pm – 6:30 pm. Council Member 
Rota moved, seconded by Council Member Schatza to open the public hearing.  Motion passed unanimously. Beverly 
Frank and Tina Jarrard approached the Council regarding fireworks, in general, and asked if any changes have been 
made to the current ordinance. There being no others to address the Council, Council Member Schatza moved, 
seconded by Council Member Larson to close the public hearing.  Motion passed unanimously.  Council Member 
Schatza moved, seconded by Council Member Bailey to approve the fireworks permit application for R Recreation as 
presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Consideration of Ordinance No. 20-007, 3rd & Final Reading: Visionary Communications, Inc Franchise 
Agreement – Deputy City Clerk/Administrative Assistant Megan Sims read Ordinance No. 20-007 by title only. This 
ordinance establishes franchise agreements with Visionary Communications, Inc. Council Member Schatza moved, 
seconded by Council Member Bailey to adopt Ordinance No. 20-007 on third and final reading. Roll call vote was 
conducted and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Consideration of Ordinance No. 20-009, 3rd & Final Reading: Contact Communications, Inc Franchise 
Agreement – Deputy City Clerk/Administrative Assistant Megan Sims read Ordinance No. 20-009 by title only. This 
ordinance establishes franchise agreements with and Contact Communications, Inc. Council Member Schatza moved, 
seconded by Council Member Rota to adopt Ordinance No. 20-009 on third and final reading. Roll call vote was 
conducted and the motion passed unanimously. 
 

2



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3 November 3, 2020 

Consideration of Ordinance No. 20-008, 3rd & Final Reading: RMC 10.04 Right of Way Closures – Deputy City 
Clerk/Administrative Assistant Megan Sims read Ordinance No. 20-008 by title only. This ordinance amends Riverton 
Municipal Code chapter 10.04.  Council Member Schatza moved, seconded by Council Member Hancock to adopt 
Ordinance No. 20-008 on third and final reading. Roll call vote was conducted and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
EDGE Committee Appointments – City Administrator Tony Tolstedt reported of twenty-one (21) expression of 
interest forms received to serve on the EDGE Committee. Per Resolution No. 1422, the committee consists of seven 
(7) members with two (2) alternates. The seven (7) individuals proposed are: Mary Axthelm, Brett Watson, Janet 
Winslow, Vivian Watkins, Leonard Kosirog, Julie Buller, and Marissa Selvig. The proposed alternates are: Jeremy 
Hughes, and Lindsey Cox. Council Member Larson moved, seconded by Council Member Rota to accept the Mayoral 
appointments to the EDGE Committee. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Concurrence of Fremont County Commissioners Support of Pari-Mutuel Wagering – City Administrator Tony 
Tolstedt presented the Council with a resolution approved by the Fremont County Commissioners for the allowance 
of pari-mutuel wagering at 1409 W Main St in Riverton. Pursuant to State Statue, pari-mutuel wagering is allowed in 
City limits, but approved through the County. The County is requesting concurrence from the Council. Council 
Member Schatza moved, seconded by Council Member Bailey to support the Fremont County Commissioners decision 
regarding pari-mutuel wagering at 1409 W Main St. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Quarterly Fiscal Health Report – Finance Director Mia Harris presented a report to the Council reflecting the City’s 
fiscal health for the 1st quarter of the fiscal year. Mrs. Harris reported on the revenues verses expenditures in the general 
fund and enterprise funds. Also reviewed were the airport funds. No action was taken. 
 
Council Committee Reports & Council Members’ Roundtable – Council Member Schatza commented on the 
Chamber Halloween event and its successes and reminded the Community of the supplies in need at the PAWS Animal 
Shelter; Council Member Hancock reported on the Fremont County School District #25 Recreation Board meeting he 
attended and commented on the fireworks comment previously given; Council Member Rota also reported on the 
FCSD #25 Recreation Board he attended and reminded the public to lock your cars due to the high amount of car theft 
happening lately; Council Member Bailey reported on the Airport Board Meeting he attended, reported on the FORCC 
meeting and projects, and also commented on the Chamber Halloween Event; and Council Member Larson, as well, 
commented on the FORCC projects. 
 
City Administrator’s Report – City Administrator Tony Tolstedt reminded of upcoming meetings: FORCC, EDGE, 
and Airport Board; commented on and thanked everyone who volunteers as well as the County Elections office for 
their diligent and successful work on election day; and presented a picture of a repurposed recycling trailer that will 
now be used for traffic control materials. Mr. Tolstedt thanked Operations Division Manager Brian Eggleston and 
Equipment Operator Josh Hernandez for their wiliness to help make processes work more efficiently.  
 
Mayor’s Comments – Mayor Gard commented on and thanked everyone in regards to the Gannett Drive project; 
thanked the Elections Office for their organization to help ease voting; reported of the emergency management meeting 
he attended; commented on the RCEDA meeting; thanked all the individuals who submitted expression of interest 
forms for the EDGE Committee; and briefly discussed the current fireworks ordinance.  
 
Executive Session - Council Member Schatza moved, seconded by Council Member Rota to convene into Executive 
Session for the purpose of personnel at 8:12 pm. Motion passed unanimously. Mayor Gard invited in City 
Administrator Tony Tolstedt and Deputy City Clerk/Administrative Assistant Megan Sims. Council Member Schatza 
moved, seconded by Council Member Rota to reconvene into regular session at 9:03 p.m. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Adjourn – There being no further business to come before the Council, Council Member Hancock moved, seconded 
by Council Member Schatza to adjourn the Regular Council meeting at 9:04 p.m. There was no objection from the 
Council.  
 

3



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3 November 3, 2020 

 
CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING  
 
                
          Richard P. Gard 

Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 
 
Publication Date:  

4



RIVERTON MUNICIPAL COURT
REPORT

CASH RECEIPTING 

SEPTEMBER 25 THROUGH OCTOBER 29, 2020

EXCEL/CASHRECEIPTINGJOURNAL.XLS (SHEET 1)

TOTAL DOCKETS FOR OCTOBER 160
TOTAL ADMIN CREDIT TOTAL 

DATE RECVD FEES FINES COSTS CARD BOND VCF REST RECVD
9/25-10/1/20 3,340.00$        8.00$         2,666.00$    90.00$      561.00$     15.00$   3,340.00$   
10/2-10/8/20 1,536.00$        14.00$       741.00$       50.00$      641.00$     85.00$      5.00$        1,536.00$   
10/9-10/15/20 2,894.00$        756.00$     1,237.00$    45.00$      706.00$     100.00$ 50.00$      2,894.00$   
10/16-10/22/20 2,231.00$        6.00$         1,629.00$    70.00$      526.00$     2,231.00$   
10/23-10/29/20 1,390.00$        6.00$         1,224.00$    50.00$      50.00$       60.00$   1,390.00$   

SUB TOTAL 11,391.00$      790.00$     7,497.00$    305.00$    2,484.00$  85.00$      175.00$ 55.00$      11,391.00$ 

VCF 175.00$           
REST 75.00$             $20 PD W/ CC 9/29
BOND M 85.00$             
OVER PAY
BCK GRNDS
E Shoshone
WRC 330.00$           
TOTAL 11,386.00$      

                                                                    
JUDGE MCKEE

5



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Eric P. Carr, P.E. – Director of Community Development 
 
THROUGH: Tony Tolstedt – City Administrator 
 
DATE: November 17, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Re-plat Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton 
 
PETITIONER:   Diversified Investments, LLC 
 
 
Recommendation:   The City Council approve the Re-plat Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition to 
the City of Riverton. 
   
 
Background:  The Larsen Family Addition plat was recorded February 2, 2019 and created two 
lots along the east side of Hill Street between Maddux Road (a.k.a. Mam’s Way) and West Main 
Street.  More specifically, the plat divided a 5 acre parcel containing a single family residence 
into two separate parcels; a 2 acre parcel containing the existing residence (Lot 2), and another 3 
acre vacant parcel (Lot 1).  
 
Discussion:  This re-plat of Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition now seeks to divide Lot 1 into two 
separate parcels (Lot 1A & Lot 1B). Lot 1A is proposed as 1.36 acres, and Lot 1B is proposed as 
1.69 acres.  A 40-ft wide access and utility easement will divide Lot 1A and Lot 1B. This 
easement will allow access to the 8.5 acre parcel to the east also owned by the petitioner. 
 
Notifications to surrounding properties were sent with no responses as of the publication date of 
this packet.  The Planning Commission reviewed this re-plat at their November 5th, 2020 regular 
meeting and recommended approval unanimously. 
  
Alternatives:   

 Do not approve the re-plat as proposed. 
 Approve the re-plat with amendments or stipulations. 

 
Budget Impact:  There is no immediate budget impact resulting from the staff recommendation.   

6



DIVERSIFIED
INVESTMENTS

W.D. 2019-1408524

H
I
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

M
A

IN
 S

TR
E

E
T (U

.S
. H

W
Y

  2
6

)

MADDUX ROAD (A.K.A. MAM'S WAY)

CITY OF RIVERTON
WD 84-273

N
00

°3
5'

34
"W

 5
00

.8
3'

S65°26'25"E 274.63'

S52°52'05"E 267.49'

N40°35'12"E
57.47'

LOT 1A

S0
0°

41
'1

2"
E

 5
04

.5
2'

LOT 2
LARSEN FAMILY

ADDITION

LOT 1B

REPLAT OF
LOT 1

TO THE

LOCATED IN
SW1/4SE1/4, SECTION 29,

T.1N., R.4E., W.R.M.,
FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

LEGEND

NOTES

CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING

APPROVED

LOCATION MAP

CERTIFICATE AND DEDICATION OF TITLE

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION

CLERK OR RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE

CITY OF RIVERTON

PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATE

SCALE: 1"=50'

CENTRAL WYOMING

COLLEGE

R
IV

E
R

V
IE

W

R
O

A
D

H
I
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

U
.S. H

W
Y 26 (M

A
IN

 ST.)

SW1/4SE1/4

SEC. 29

LARSEN FAMILY ADDITION

7

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°24'57"E 2629.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST COR. SW1/4SE1/4, SECTION 29, T.1N., R.4E., W.R.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST COR. SECTION 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
59,253 SQ. FT. (1.36%%P ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
267.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 23' WIDE DRIVEWAY CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WYDOT R/W MONUMENT "STA. 109+01.2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WYDOT R/W MONUMENT "STA. 93+39.7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0' WIDE UTILITY, IRRIGATION*, AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0' WIDE IRRIGATION* AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.0' WIDE UTILITY, IRRIGATION*, & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0' WIDE IRRIGATION*, AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST COR. SE1/4, SEC. 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 34' WIDE DRIVEWAY CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0' WIDE UTILITY IRRIGATION*, AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.0' S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0' WIDE UTILITY IRRIGATION*, AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
262.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
73,535%%P SQ. FT. (1.69%%P ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.0' WIDE ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
237.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
290.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pg:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bk:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job:

AutoCAD SHX Text
(307)856-1647

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Riverton, Wyoming  82501

AutoCAD SHX Text
407 West Adams Avenue, Box 1751

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING AND LAND SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
APEX SURVEYING, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2" DIA. ALUMINUM CAP ON 5/8"x24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR SET, INSCRIBED "PLS 8972"

AutoCAD SHX Text
City Council of Riverton

AutoCAD SHX Text
By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thomas A. Johnson, PLS No. 8972

AutoCAD SHX Text
Subscribed and sworn to before me this        day of               , 2020,

AutoCAD SHX Text
by Thomas A. Johnson

AutoCAD SHX Text
Notary Public

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, Thomas A. Johnson, do hereby state that I am a registered Land Surveyor licensed under the laws of the State of Wyoming, that this plat is a true, correct and complete plat of Replat of Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton, containing 3.05 acres (132,788 Square feet) more or less, as laid out, platted, dedicated and shown hereon, that such plat was made from an accurate survey of said property made by me and under my supervision and correctly shows the location and dimensions of the lots and easements of said subdivision as the same are staked upon the ground in compliance with Fremont County Subdivision regulations governing the subdivision of land. In witness whereof I have set my hand and seal this        day of               , 2020.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF WYOMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF FREMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 1-1/2" DIA. ALUMINUM CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
COTTON GIN SPIKE SET IN PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
My commission expires

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plat of Replat Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton was filed in the office of Clerk and Recorder of Fremont County at     o'clock  M., on the       day of               , 2020, and is duly recorded in Plat Cabinet      , page      , Document No.            .

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
this        day of               , 2020.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert Scheidemantel, Chairman

AutoCAD SHX Text
Julie Freese

AutoCAD SHX Text
County Clerk and Recorder

AutoCAD SHX Text
Deputy County Clerk and Recorder

AutoCAD SHX Text
Witness my hand this     day of             , 2020.

AutoCAD SHX Text
My commission expires

AutoCAD SHX Text
Notary Public

AutoCAD SHX Text
This Instrument was acknowledged before me on                    , 2020.

AutoCAD SHX Text
by Michael V. Bailey.

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF WYOMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF FREMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Michael V. Bailey, Agent for Diversified Investements LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19082

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED: 10/16/2020 2:53 PM10/16/2020 2:53 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 1-1/2" DIA. ALUMINUM CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
WYDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON PIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THE IRRIGATION EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON ARE TO SERVE AS ACCESS EASEMENTS FOR THE PURPOSES OF MAINTAINING THE IRRIGATION DITCHES, PIPELINES AND APPURTENANCES. 2. ZONING FOR LOT 1A IS TO BE CH-COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY, ZONING FOR LOTS 1B IS TO RETAIN CURRENT ZONING OF R-A, REFERENCE CITY OF RIVERTON MUNICIPAL CODE FOR ALLOWED USES. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION: THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 1 ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION*

AutoCAD SHX Text
Richard P. Gard, Mayor

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kristin S. Watson, Clerk

AutoCAD SHX Text
Know all men by these presents that Diversified Investments LLC is the owner in fee simple of all that real property described as follows: Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition, City of Riverton, Fremont County, Wyoming Be it further known that Diversified Investments LLC has caused this property to be platted into lots, and easements, as shown hereon and designated the same to be henceforth known as Replat Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton, County of Fremont, State of Wyoming; and does hereby dedicate for their intended use the access, utility, irrigation, and drainage easements shown hereon.

AutoCAD SHX Text
This Plat of Replat Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton, Fremont County, Wyoming approved by the CIty of Riverton Planning Commission

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 2" DIA. ALUMINUM CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSCRIBED "PLS 8972"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSCRIBED "PLS 8972"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SPIKE AND SHINER IN PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-



LORRAINE P. LARSEN
LIVING TRUST

AFF. 2018-1404769

H
I
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

M
A

IN
 S

TR
E

E
T (U

.S
. H

W
Y

  2
6

)

MADDUX ROAD (A.K.A. MAM'S WAY)

CITY OF RIVERTON
WD 84-273

N
00

°3
5'

34
"W

 9
20

.7
9'

S65°26'25"E 274.63'

S88°24'57"W 249.94'

LOT 1

LOT 2

S0
0°

41
'1

2"
E

 5
04

.5
2'

EASEMENT OF RECORD
W.D. Bk. 143, P. 21

S0
0°

41
'1

2"
E

 3
10

.0
0'

N89°21'13"E
13.44'

N00°41'12"W
15.00'

S88°24'57"W
13.44'

PLAT OF
LARSEN FAMILY ADDITION

TO THE

LOCATED IN
SW1/4SE1/4, SECTION 29,

T.1N., R.4E., W.R.M.,
FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING

LEGEND

NOTES

CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING

APPROVED

LOCATION MAP

CERTIFICATE AND DEDICATION OF TITLE

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION

CLERK OR RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS CERTIFICATE

CITY OF RIVERTON

PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATE

SCALE: 1"=50'

UTI
LI

TY
 V

IE
W

UTI
LI

TY
 V

IE
W

UTILITY LEGEND

CENTRAL WYOMING

COLLEGE

R
IV

E
R

V
IE

W

R
O

A
D

H
I
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

U
.S. H

W
Y 26 (M

A
IN

 ST.)

SW1/4SE1/4

SEC. 29

PER RMP CO. THIS
EASEMENT TO BE
RELINQUISHED BY

PACIFICORP

8

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°24'57"E 2629.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST COR. SW1/4SE1/4, SECTION 29, T.1N., R.4E., W.R.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE S1/2SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST COR. SECTION 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
500.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.05%%P ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.97%%P ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
267.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 23' WIDE DRIVEWAY CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WYDOT R/W MONUMENT "STA. 109+01.2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WYDOT R/W MONUMENT "STA. 93+39.7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ASPHALT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0' WIDE IRRIGATION* AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT AND ELECTRIC LINE EASEMENT OF RECORD Bk. 82, P. 717 DATED AUG. 1978

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0' WIDE IRRIGATION* AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT OF RECORD Bk. 66, P. 743

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0' WIDE ACCESS, UTILITY & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT OF RECORD Bk. 66, P. 743, DATED DEC. 1977 & Bk. 82, P. 717, DATED AUG. 1978

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0' WIDE WATERLINE EASEMENT OF RECORD Bk. 71, P. 723 DATED FEB. 1978

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0' WIDE ELECTRIC LINE EASEMENT OF RECORD Bk. 82, P. 717 DATED AUG. 1978

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.0' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.0' WIDE UTILITY, IRRIGATION*, & DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT OF RECORD Bk. 66, P. 743, DATED DEC. 1977 & Bk. 82, P. 717, DATED AUG. 1978 & WATERLINE EASEMENT OF RECORD Bk. 71, P. 723, DATED FEB. 1978

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST COR. SE1/4, SEC. 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0' WIDE IRRIGATION*, AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 34' WIDE DRIVEWAY CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.0' WIDE "EASEMENT & RIGHT-OF-WAY" W.D. Bk. 143, P. 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0' WIDE SEWER LINE EASEMENT MF Bk. 85, P. 492

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0' WIDE SEWER LINE EASEMENT MF. Bk. 79, P. 871

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARSEN TO MADDUX W.D. Bk. 83, P. 587

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pg:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bk:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job:

AutoCAD SHX Text
(307)856-1647

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Riverton, Wyoming  82501

AutoCAD SHX Text
407 West Adams Avenue, Box 1751

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING AND LAND SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
APEX SURVEYING, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2" DIA. ALUMINUM CAP ON 5/8"x24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR SET, INSCRIBED "PLS 8972"

AutoCAD SHX Text
City Council of Riverton

AutoCAD SHX Text
By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Richard P. Gard, Mayor

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thomas A. Johnson, PLS No. 8972

AutoCAD SHX Text
Subscribed and sworn to before me this        day of               , 2018,

AutoCAD SHX Text
by Thomas A. Johnson

AutoCAD SHX Text
Notary Public

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, Thomas A. Johnson, do hereby state that I am a registered Land Surveyor licensed under the laws of the State of Wyoming, that this plat is a true, correct and complete plat of the Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton, containing 5.02 acres (218,547 square feet) more or less, as laid out, platted, dedicated and shown hereon, that such plat was made from an accurate survey of said property made by me and under my supervision and correctly shows the location and dimensions of the lots and easements of said subdivision as the same are staked upon the ground in compliance with Fremont County Subdivision regulations governing the subdivision of land. In witness whereof I have set my hand and seal this        day of               , 2018.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF WYOMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF FREMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 1-1/2" DIA. ALUMINUM CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
COTTON GIN SPIKE SET IN PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT INFORMATION FOR DEVELOPERS: Keith Larsen 15 Hill Street Riverton, Wyoming 82501 keithgl777@gmail.com ph. 307-851-5777 

AutoCAD SHX Text
My commission expires

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plat of Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton was filed in the office of Clerk and Recorder of Fremont County at     o'clock  M., on the       day of               , 2018, and is duly recorded in Plat Cabinet      , page      , Document No.            .

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dated this     day of              , 2018.

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plat is hereby approved by the Board of County Commissioners of Fremont County, Wyoming for filing with the Clerk and Recorder of Fremont County, subject to the provision that approval in no way obligates Fremont County for financing or construction any of the improvements on lands, streets, easements or other public common areas.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Travis Becker, Chairman

AutoCAD SHX Text
Witness my hand and seal of the County of Fremont this     day of              , 2018.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Julie Freese

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTEST:

AutoCAD SHX Text
County Clerk and Recorder

AutoCAD SHX Text
this        day of               , 2018.

AutoCAD SHX Text
approved by the CIty of Riverton Planning Commission

AutoCAD SHX Text
Garth Yeates, Chairman

AutoCAD SHX Text
This Plat of Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton, Fremont County, Wyoming

AutoCAD SHX Text
Julie Freese

AutoCAD SHX Text
County Clerk and Recorder

AutoCAD SHX Text
Deputy County Clerk and Recorder

AutoCAD SHX Text
Know all men by these presents that the Lorraine P. Larsen Living Trust, Dated July 16, 2018 is the owner in fee simple of all that real property described as follows: A parcel of land located in the SW1/4SE1/4, Section 29, T.1N., R.4E., W.R.M., Fremont County, Wyoming being more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the southwest corner of the SW1/4SE1/4, said Section 29; thence N88°24'57"E, along thesouth line of said SW1/4SE1/4, 60.00 feet; thence N00°35'34"W 15.00 feet to the point of beginning; thencecontinue N00°35'34"W 920.79 feet to the south right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 26; thence S65°26'25"E, alongsaid south right-of-way line, 274.62 feet; thence S00°41'12"E 504.52 feet; thence N89°21'13"E 13.44 feet;thence S00°41'12"E 310.00 feet more or less to the south line of said SW1/4SE1/4; thence S88°24'57"W, alongsaid south line, 13.44 feet; thence N00°41'12"W 15.00 feet; thence S88°24'57"W, parallel with said south line,249.94 feet to the point of beginning of this description.		 Be it further known that the Lorraine P. Larsen Living Trust, through its Successor Trustees has caused this property to be platted into lots, and easements, as shown hereon and designated the same to be henceforth known as Larsen Family Addition to the City of Riverton, County of Fremont, State of Wyoming; and does hereby dedicate for their intended use the access, utility, irrigation, and drainage easements shown hereon.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Witness my hand this     day of             , 2018.

AutoCAD SHX Text
My commission expires

AutoCAD SHX Text
Notary Public

AutoCAD SHX Text
This Instrument was acknowledged before me on                    , 2018.

AutoCAD SHX Text
by Keith G. Larsen.

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF WYOMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF FREMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Keith G. Larsen, Successor Trustee of Lorraine P. Larsen Living Trust Dated July 16, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
Witness my hand this     day of             , 2018.

AutoCAD SHX Text
My commission expires

AutoCAD SHX Text
Notary Public

AutoCAD SHX Text
This Instrument was acknowledged before me on                    , 2018.

AutoCAD SHX Text
by Mark J. Larsen.

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF WYOMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF FREMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mark J. Larsen, Successor Trustee of Lorraine P. Larsen Living Trust Dated July 16, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
274&GPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
18144

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED: 12/6/2018 1:47 PM12/6/2018 1:47 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" DIA. ALUMINUM CAP ON 5/8"x24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR SET, INSCRIBED "PLS 8972"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO READABLE INSCRIPTION (UNLESS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 1-1/2" DIA. ALUMINUM CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSCRIBED "PLS 2454"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 1-1/2" DIA. ALUMINUM CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSCRIBED "PLS 5134"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WYDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON PIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THE RECORD LOCATION OF THE ELECTRIC LINE EASEMENT SHOWN CROSSING EAST-WEST THROUGH LOT 1 IS INDETERMINATE AND IS SHOWN GRAPHICAL HEREON ONLY BASED ON THE SKETCH PROVIDED IN THE REFERENCED DOCUMENT. THAT SKETCH HAD NO LOCATION DIMENSIONS. 2. THE IRRIGATION EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON ARE TO SERVE AS ACCESS EASEMENTS FOR THE PURPOSES OF MAINTAINING THE IRRIGATION DITCHES, LINES AND APPURTENANCES ON LOTS 1 AND 2. 3. LOTS IN THIS SUBDIVISION ARE ZONED R-A, DESCRIBED AS RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURE, REFERENCE CITY OF RIVERTON MUNICIPAL CODE FOR ALLOWED USES. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 2 ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION*

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GAS LINE (APPROXIMATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER (APPROXIMATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATERLINE (APPROXIMATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE &

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION: THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: THE WATER AND SEWER UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE PLOTTED FROM RECORD UTILITY MAPS PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF RIVERTON. THE ACTUAL LOCATION RELATIVE TO THE PROPERTY LINES MAY VARY FROM THAT SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRRIGATION STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kristin S. Watson, Clerk



 CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Tony Tolstedt – City Administrator 
 
DATE: November 13, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Sale of land particularly described as RIW Industrial Lot 1 
 
Recommendation:   That City Council accept an offer from Robin Dolcater to purchase 
real property (RIW Industrial Lot 1) from the City of Riverton in the amount of 
92,000.00 for the purpose of economic development  pursuant to W.S. 15-1-112.   
 
 
Background:   
The City of Riverton is in receipt of an offer from _Robin Dolcater regarding the 
property particularly described as RIW Industrial Lot 1..  The Goods expressed their 
interest in obtaining the property for development of a commercial building as denoted in 
the attached statement from the buyer.  Staff alerted Council to the potential sale at a 
previous Council meeting per.  
 
Upon receipt of the attached offer, Staff, pursuant to W.S. 15-1-112, began a three-week 
advertisement of the sale, culminating with a public hearing on the sale. Pursuant to W.S. 
15-1-112 a realtor’s opinion of cost was performed on the property and that document is 
attached for review. It is the understanding of staff that this meets the appraisal 
requirement. A letter denoting the intended business use was provided by the buyer and is 
attached for review. A copy of the legal advertisement is also attached.  
 
Discussion:    
The Council chose to set advertised sale prices by agreement at the 2/18/2020 council 
meeting in an effort to promote sale of City owned properties located near the airport  
The property proposed for purchase is currently listed at $100,000.00. The City has 
received no additional offers or communication on this property either before or after the 
advertisement for sale.  
 
As the proposed use of the ground is the development of a commercial building for the 
purpose of business, Council may choose to sell the property without accepting bids 
following publication of the proposed sale pursuant to statute. This method is proposed.  
 
Alternatives:   
• Reject the current offer for the property.   
• Accept the offer with conditions. 

 

9



Budget Impact:  If accepted the City would ultimately receive $92,000.00 (minus 
applicable fees) for the sale of the property.  Net proceeds are estimated by the realtor at 
$86,480.00 and the analysis is attached.   
 
Council Goals:  This sale directly pertains to Council Goal #6: Promote Economic Development.    
 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



CITY COUNCIL ACTION MEMO 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Anthony Tolstedt, City Administrator 

DATE: November 13, 2020 

SUBJECT: Appointment / Concurrence of EDGE Committee appointment.  
 
Recommendation:   That Council concur with the Mayor’s appointment of Matt 
Coughanour as an alternate to the EDGE Committee.    
 
Background:  The EVOLVE, DIVERSIFY, AND GROW OUR ECONOMY (EDGE) 
Committee was established via passage of Resolution No. 1422 on September 1, 2020. 
The committee is to be composed of seven (7) members with two (2) alternates appointed 
to serve when any of the seven formal members are absent.  
 
With Lindsey Cox being elected to the City Council, it is proposed to replace her as an 
alternate with Matt Coughanour who was one of the original applicants to the committee.  
 
Discussion:  Pursuant Resolution No. 1422, seven (7) members and two (2) alternates 
were proposed for concurrence. The previous appointments were as follows.  
 
The two (2) appointed alternates are currently Jeremy Hughes and Lindsey Cox. Matt 
Coughanor is proposed to replace Lindsey Cox and fill out the remainder of that two-year 
term as an alternate for the EDGE Committee.   

 
Alternatives:   Council may approve, deny or propose modifications to the proposed 
appointment. Modifications would require concurrence from the Mayor, as appointments 
are first from the Mayor with concurrence by City Council.  
 
Budget Impact:  There is no direct budget impact associated with the approval of the 
proposed appointments.  
 
Council Goals:  Approval shall promote Council Goal #6: Promote Economic 
Development.  
 

28



CITY COUNCIL ACTION MEMO 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Megan Sims, Deputy City Clerk/Administrative Assistant 
 
THROUGH: Tony Tolstedt, City Administrator 
 
DATE: November 13, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Transfer of Funds & Purchase of New Balloon Envelope 
 
 
Recommendation:  That Council approve the Riverton Rendezvous Board’s request to 
transfer $13,000 from the Balloon Envelope Fund to the Riverton Rendezvous operating 
account for the purchase of a Kubicek hot air balloon envelope.  
 
 
Background:  The Riverton Rendezvous Board was established as a City Advisory Board 
by Resolution No. 1231 at the March 15, 2011 City Council Meeting. An agreement was 
formed between the City of Riverton and the past Riverton Rendezvous Board to transfer 
all property and funds to the City in exchange for the City being responsible for the annual 
event, with the Board continuing as a volunteer advisory board of the City to assist in 
planning and coordination of the event.  
 
The Rendezvous Fund utilizes two cash accounts: one as an operating account and the other 
serves as a revenue account for the purchase of a new envelope or for repairs to the existing 
envelopes. All monies received for paid balloon flights or general donations go directly 
into the envelope fund which currently has a balance of $13,167.55. The operating balance 
is currently at $48,829.37. 
 
Discussion:  The Rendezvous Board has approached City staff requesting a transfer of 
$13,000 from the envelope fund to the Rendezvous operating fund for the purchase of a 
new hot air balloon envelope. Currently, both Cloud Kisser II and Cloud Kisser III can be 
inflated and flown; however, based on last year’s annual inspection, Cloud Kisser III is not 
expected to pass the necessary inspection to continue flying. Therefore, the Board has met 
and formally approved the purchase of a new envelope from Kubicek Balloons with City 
Council concurrence. 
 
Alternatives:  Council may deny or direct the committee otherwise for the transfer and 
purchase request of a new balloon envelope. 
 
Budget Impact:  If approved, the budget will be amended to reflect the transfer of existing 
funds for the purchase of a new envelope. 
 
 

29



 CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 

FROM:  Kyle J. Butterfield, Public Works Director 

 

THROUGH:  Tony Tolstedt, City Administrator 

 

DATE:   November 17, 2020 

 

SUBJECT:  Professional Services Selection Policy 

 
 

Recommendation:  The City Council considers and adopts the Professional Services Selection Policy. 

 

Background:  The city utilizes the service of professional firms to provide engineering, architectural, and 

surveying services to address various complex needs of the community.  It has utilized a qualification-

based selection process to procure these services when they are necessary.  This process includes 

advertising for statements of qualification from interested firms, the utilizations of a selection committee 

to review and rank qualifications of the firms, and the negotiation of fees after the most qualified firm has 

been identified.   

 

The City Council has directed staff to draft a policy revising its current selection process for professional 

services.  Specifically, the council has asked for a provision in the selection process where price could be 

considered prior to entering contract negotiations.   

 

Discussion:  In 1972, the United States Congress adopted the Brooks Act, requiring the use of 

qualification-based selection for the procurement of architect and engineering services.  The purpose of 

this selection process is to ensure agencies and taxpayers receive technical engineering, architectural, and 

surveying services from the most experienced and most qualified firms at a fair and reasonable cost.  

Since the adoption of the Brooks Act, 46 state governments and many municipal governments have 

incorporated similar laws and policies requiring qualification-based selection for professional services.  

The Professional Architectural, Engineering, and Land Survey Services Procurement Act (W.S. 9-2-1027) 

outlines Wyoming’s requirement for qualification-based selection. 

 

The American Council of Engineering Companies (ACEC) advocates for qualification-based selection 

procedures and has identified four benefits associated therewith.  They are: 

 

1. Protection of the Public Welfare.  As with legal or medical services, engineering is a highly 

skilled service that should not be selected on basis of the firm offering the cheapest price.  

Engineers design the highways and bridges we drive on, our water treatment systems, and all 

other infrastructure and systems upon which we rely.  The design services provided by 

engineering firms directly affect the health, safety and welfare of the public, and it is important 

that only the most qualified and experienced firms be tasked with this critical function. 

30



2. Protection of the Taxpayer.  Over the life of a project, engineering services account for less than 

one-half of one percent of total project costs.  Yet these services play a profound role in 

determining overall project costs.  A well-designed project by a highly qualified firm will stay on 

time and on budget, solve construction and operational challenges, experience fewer change 

orders during construction, enhance performance of the completed project, and reduce long-term 

maintenance and repair costs.   

3. Benefit to Small Firms.  Qualification-based selection helps small firms compete by providing a 

forum to demonstrate their unique capabilities that often include a greater degree of niche market 

expertise, knowledge of local regulations and business practices, and greater involvement of 

senior level management in the execution of a project. 

4. Promotes Technical Innovation.  Using qualification-based selection, owners have the 

opportunity to fully define the project scope during the selection process.  This process fosters 

innovative, cost-saving and timesaving approaches to problems, ensuring that the final project 

meets or exceeds the functional and performance goals set by the owner. 

 

In addition to the advocacy of ACEC, the American Public Works Association (APWA) and American 

Water Works Association (AWWA) have adopted policy statements encouraging entities with public 

works and water works responsibilities to utilize qualification-based selection.  These statements are 

included as attachments to this report.  APWA reports that “basing selections on qualifications and 

competence, rather than price, fosters greater creativity and flexibility, and minimizes the potential for 

disputes and litigation.”  AWWA further states, “qualifications-based selection for procurement of 

professional services provides greater assurance that water utility interests, and hence public interests, are 

best served though well-planned, well-designed, cost-effective and reliable utility projects.” 

 

The Professional Services Selection Policy for consideration follows the recommendation and guidelines 

of professional organizations and state and federal laws.  It also incorporates the City Council’s direction 

to include cost of service in the selection process.  The policy establishes four procurement methods for 

the City.  They are Competitive Negotiation (Qualification-Based Selection), Small Purchasing Threshold 

Procurement, Non-Competitive Emergency Conditions Procurement, and Non-Competitive Sole Source 

Procurement. 

 

The procurement method associated with Competitive Negotiation (Qualification-Based Selection) 

incorporates similar steps to the current process utilized by the city.  However, it includes a new provision 

that empowers the City Administrator, or his/her designee, to consider a firm’s fee estimate as a selection 

metric.  Consideration of this fee estimate only occurs after interested professional service firms are rated 

by a selection committee against qualification-based matrices.  It is also incorporated in an interview 

process with an interview committee.   

 

Once the selection process is completed, a firm is proposed to the City Council for consideration.  Upon 

its approval, the council directs city staff to negotiate a scope of work and fee with the selected firm.  

Staff later presents a final contract to the council for approval and execution. Should negotiations with the 

first selected firm fail, staff enters into negotiation with the next highest rated firm until a contract can be 

produced. 

 

31



The city regularly works with federal, state, and alternative funding agencies when making improvements 

to the community.  Many of these agencies prescribe the method by which professional services are 

procured.  For example the Federal Aviation Administration requires a qualification-based selection 

where costs can only be discussed after a consultant has been selected (see attached policy).  In light of 

the rules and regulations of the various funding agencies with which the city works, the Professional 

Services Selection Policy allows for their policies and procedures to take precedence over conflicting 

provisions of the proposed policy. 

 

Action Options: 

 

1. Approve the Professional Services Selection Policy as presented 

2. Discuss and recommend alterations to the policy 

3. Take no action 

 

Budget Impact:  None 

 

32



 

 

American Public Works Association  

Washington Office 1275 K St., NW, Suite 750 

Washington, DC 20005 202-408-9541/Fax 202-408-9542  

www.apwa.net  

Advocacy Position Statement  

Qualifications Based Selection of Professional Services Consultants  

Statement of Purpose  The American Public Works Association (APWA) seeks to inform elected 

officials, regulators, policy-makers and decision-makers and the public at-large of its stated position on 

Qualifications Based Selection (QBS) of professional services consultants.  

Statement of Position APWA believes that the public interest is best served when governmental 

agencies select architects, engineers, and related professional services and technical consultants for 

projects and studies through Qualifications Based Selection (QBS) procedures as opposed to price. 

Basing selections on qualifications and competence, rather than price, fosters greater creativity and 

flexibility, and minimizes the potential for disputes and litigation. APWA has developed and published 

a document which better defines our position entitled, “Selection and Use of Architects, Engineers, and 

Professional Consultants – Guidelines for Public Agencies,” also known as the Red Book. Reference 

this publication for further information on this topic.  

Background and Rationale Since enactment of the Public Law 92-582 (the Brooks A/E Act, a summary 

of which can be found in Appendix C of the Red Book) in 1972, forty-four states currently use QBS 

procedures. They involve public announcement of technical contract opportunities, use of a formal 

selection and ranking process designed to identify the most qualified firm, and contract negotiation 

(including fees) with that firm. Over time, inattention to the QBS concept has led to a shift to cost-based 

selection by certain states and localities. However, some agencies that have abandoned QBS are 

returning to it after experiencing problems with projects designed by firms that were selected primarily 

on price. Vital differences exist between cost-based and qualifications-based acquisitions by public 

agencies. Cost-based acquisitions for materials, supplies, equipment, certain services (such as 

custodial) and construction are adaptable to a system that can reasonably provide an exact description of 

the service and expected outcomes, which permits vendors to offer firm prices with confidence. 

Cost-based acquisitions are best suited where the service can be definitively described and the outcome 

can be described in terms that are not open to wide interpretation.  

 

In contrast, creative services, such as consultant technical services, seldom lend themselves to advance 

precise definition. Instead, reliance must be placed on the experience, expertise, creativity and overall 

intellectual capacity of the people involved who will ultimately determine the success of the project 

design or technical study. A detailed interview is the only effective way to evaluate technical 

consultant's qualification related to the work at hand. After selection, the consultant's scope of services, 

contract and compensation can be tailored specifically to the agency’s requirements. When consultant 

selection is based solely or primarily on price, appropriate comparison of qualifications with the work 

needed and the fee paid rarely occurs.  

 

33



 

Further, design fees are generally a very small part of overall project costs, regardless of the method of 

consultant selection. Construction and life-cycle operation, maintenance, and liability exposure-costs 

are far larger. While some fee savings may be identifiable in cost-based selection processes, it is not 

possible to predict potential adverse construction or long-term cost impacts that might result from poor 

quality architectural, engineering or other professional services. Only through the QBS process can 

agencies be confident of consistently achieving optimum costs for studies, planning, design, 

construction, operation and maintenance of publicly funded projects.  

Public agencies commonly seek to obtain maximum value from public infrastructure investments, 

especially where true value results from creative endeavor. Bidding or other cost-based selection is 

unlikely to produce the best creative outcomes. When bidding, any prudent consultant must often 

include significant contingencies because of uncertainties about the true extent of effort required, and 

misjudgment frequently leads to reduction in the quality or scope of the design effort to compensate. 

Negotiating a detailed scope of work with the highest ranked firm under QBS provides a basis for 

realistic fees and promotes full cooperation of the consultant in fulfilling the contract.  

APWA has long supported quality in all public agency activities, focusing on economy, safety, 

efficiency, sound construction, serviceability, maintenance, and operations. QBS can reach satisfactory 

goals in all those areas, but price-based selection for consultant services cannot. The goal of highest 

quality results and lowest fees are in conflict, and history provides little basis to believe that bidding can 

or will actually produce lower fees than will QBS.  

 

Mechanics of QBS Selection  

QBS means that the qualifications of architect/engineer consultants are the primary determining factors 

in consultant selection. Agencies are normally required to give notice to potential consultants and other 

professional service providers regarding the available work and invite interested firms to respond. The 

responses are screened to determine the firms most qualified to meet the agency’s needs. The screening 

results in a short-list, because it is seldom practical or productive to interview all who respond. This 

best-qualified group is invited to appear for interview.  

 

Interviewers may include technically qualified persons, citizens, or elected officials having a special 

interest on behalf of the public agency-owner. The direct presentations, questions/answers, and 

supporting materials of each firm become the basis for ranking the firms in order of relative 

qualification to successfully accomplish the desired task. The top-rated firm is then invited for contract 

negotiations. Price is not ignored, but a realistic price is mutually agreed upon once details on the kinds 

and extent of work required of the consultant have been established through the negotiations. If 

agreement cannot be reached with the top firm, negotiations are terminated with that firm and the 

negotiations are commenced with the firm judged next-best qualified. Finally, a contract which includes 

a detailed scope of services, expected outcomes, price, schedule and other details is approved by the 

elected body authorized to execute contracts.  

Achieving Sustainability  

 

With an increasing environmental awareness in virtually every sector of our society and to harvest the 

environmental benefits of reducing the impact of natural resource consumption and the economic 

benefits to the public infrastructure, technology is making it easier and more cost effective for 

professionals across design and engineering discipline to incorporate sustainable designs.  

Qualifications based selection process facilitates the incorporation of sustainability by requiring that 

34



particular designers with recognized credentials and past project experience be included in the design 

team and be given special credit in the selection process.  

Sponsor  

Engineering and Technology Committee  

35



 
 

AWWA Policy Statement on Qualifications-

Based Selection of Professional Services 

The American Water Works Association (AWWA) encourages water utilities to procure professional 

engineering, architectural and other professional consultant services based on qualifications of the firm, 

also known as qualifications-based selection, rather than price, regardless of project size and scope. 

Qualifications include the relevant experience, capabilities, expertise and workload of the firm and the 

capability, availability, experience, education, and training of the firm’s personnel proposed for an 

assignment. Under this competitive process, the resumes, experience and expertise of the personnel 

proposed for the project, and the proposed project approach are evaluated and ranked, and the most 

qualified firm is preliminarily selected. The cost of services is considered only in negotiations with the 

selected firm based on a mutually acceptable scope of services. If a mutually acceptable scope of services 

and satisfactory price cannot be secured, then the second ranked firm is considered. 

Qualifications-based selection for procurement of professional services provides greater assurance that 

water utility interests, and hence public interests, are best served though well-planned, well-designed, 

cost-effective and reliable utility projects. AWWA joins many federal agencies, states and provinces, as 

well as other professional organizations, in supporting, and in some cases requiring, qualifications-based 

selection procedures. The professional organizations include, but are not limited to: the American Society 

of Civil Engineers (ASCE); the American Council of Engineering Companies (ACEC); the American 

Public Works Association (APWA); the National Society of Professional Engineers (NSPE); the 

American Academy of Environmental Engineers and Scientists (AAEES); the American Institute of 

Architects (AIA); the American Bar Association (ABA); the Canadian National Guide to Sustainable 

Municipal Infrastructure’s “Selecting a Professional Consultant”; and the Association of Consulting 

Engineering Companies – Canada. 

Practices specified in this policy statement are consistent with all other pertinent AWWA policy 

statements. 

 

 

Adopted by the Board of Directors January 16, 2016. Revised April 19, 2019. 

36



FAA Central Region Airports Division 
AIP Sponsor Guide 
January 5, 2018 
 
 
 

300-1 

Section 300 – Procurement of Professional Services 
 
 
This section of the AIP Sponsor Guide summarizes the steps normally required to select a consultant to 
provide professional planning, environmental, and architectural/engineering (A/E) services for projects 
funded under the FAA’s Airport Improvement Program (AIP). 
 
As a condition of AIP eligibility, sponsors must carry out their consultant selection process and conduct 
contract negotiations in accordance with Advisory Circular 150/5100-14E, Architectural, Engineering, and 
Planning Consultant Services for Airport Grant Projects.  This AC establishes FAA standards for the selection 
and contracting of professional services.  Adherence to this AC will assure a sponsor’s compliance with the 
applicable Federal laws and regulations identified therein.  Sponsors that fail to adhere to the applicable 
requirements could likely jeopardize AIP participation in the cost of professional services. 
 
The information provided herein supplements the guidance provided in the AC; it does not establish 
additional requirements for participation in the AIP.  In the event there is a discrepancy between this 
guidance and current AIP policy, AIP policy shall always take precedence. 
 
 
Qualifications Based Selection (QBS) Process 

Consultants shall be selected only on the basis of their qualifications and experience.  Selection based on 
cost is prohibited.  Costs can only be discussed after a consultant has been selected.  The major steps of the 
qualifications-based selection process are depicted in Figure 2-1 of the AC and outlined as follows (with the 
numbers in parenthesis referring to the associated section in the AC): 

1. Identifying the Project(s) and Professional Services 
2. Establishing a Selection Board (2.6) 
3. Determining a Selection Policy (2.7) 
4. Developing the Selection Criteria (2.8) 
5. Soliciting, Evaluating, and Selecting a Consultant (2.9) 
6. Developing and Executing the Consultant Agreement (2.12 to 2.14) 

 

Formal, Informal, and Non-Competitive QBS Procedures 

There are three types of QBS procedures: Formal, Informal, and Non-competitive.  As most sponsors 
are required to use Formal procedures, the AC and this section of the Sponsor Guide are geared toward 
that procedure.  Formal procedures are required when the cost of professional services is estimated to 
be $100,000 or more, when the selection addresses multiple projects, or when requested by the FAA 
Program Manager.  Informal procedures can be used if the cost of professional services is estimated to 
be less than $100,000.  Non-competitive procedures can be used if the cost of professional services is 
estimated to be $10,000 or less and those services are incidental to the project.  Requirements for the 
Informal and Non-competitive procedure are identified in paragraphs 2.10.2 and 2.10.3, respectively. 

37



FAA Central Region Airports Division 
AIP Sponsor Guide 
January 5, 2018 
 
 
 

300-2 

Step 1.  Identifying the Project(s) and Professional Services 
Sponsors have the option of selecting a consultant for a single project or several projects under one 
solicitation with the intent of issuing future work authorizations as funding becomes available.  For an 
efficient consultant selection process, we recommend the multiple-project option and as such, have written 
this section of the Sponsor Guide for that option. 

 
The proposed projects are those the sponsor and FAA reasonably expect to start within five years of the 
execution date of the initial/first agreement.  The list of proposed projects should be those drawn from the 
sponsor’s 5-Year CIP and Airport Master Plan.  Section 5-4 of the AIP Handbook provides some guidance on 
identifying potential projects early with the FAA.  In identifying the project(s), the sponsor should develop 
at a minimum: 

• name for each project,  
• broad project scopes with sufficient detail to give prospective consultants an adequate 

understanding, 
• probable year the projects are expected to start,  
• anticipated professional services required, and 
• estimated cost for each construction/equipment/land acquisition project. 

 
The professional services required will depend of the scope of the projects.  Refer to Chapter 1 of the AC for 
the types of planning, architectural/engineering, and special services that may be required.  After a 
consultant has been selected, the project’s scope and the types of professional services for each project will 
be further defined.  We strongly encourage sponsors to contact the FAA Program Manager prior to 
soliciting for professional services.  This coordination is beneficial towards 1) establishing the limits of AIP 
participation, 2) limiting the sponsor’s actions that may lead to subsequent ineligible determinations, and 3) 
providing assurance that the potential projects listed in the Notice/RFQ correspond to the projects listed in 
the FAA’s Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP). 
 

Five-year Agreements 

Selecting a consultant for multiple projects over a five-year period is the preferred option for most 
sponsors because they can make a one-time consultant selection rather than having to perform the 
consultant selection process for each project.  For a multiple-project selection, most consultants utilize 
a master agreement under which separate authorizations or task orders are issued for each project.  Per 
the AIP Handbook and the AC, a sponsor cannot extend a master agreement beyond five years of the 
execution date of first task order. 

38



FAA Central Region Airports Division 
AIP Sponsor Guide 
January 5, 2018 
 
 
 

300-3 

 
 
Step 2.  Establishing a Selection Board 
In accordance with Section 2.6, sponsors must establish a selection board composed of at least three 
knowledgeable persons that will objectively evaluate those consultants who respond to the Notice/RFQ.  
The selection board must be established before receiving statements of qualifications.  The selection board 
should become familiar with the proposed project(s) and the professional services being requested.  In 
accordance with Section 2.9, the selection board should be prepared to review the statements of 
qualification and experience, conduct interviews, rank the consultants, and make a recommendation to the 
sponsor’s governing body. 
 
Step 3.  Determining a Selection Policy 
Section 2.7 of the AC provides general requirements for selecting a consultant. 
 
Step 4.  Developing the Selection Criteria 
Section 2.8 of the AC provides general requirements for developing selection criteria. 
 
Step 5.  Soliciting, Evaluating, and Selecting a Consultant 
This step includes the following tasks: 

a. Preparing a draft Notice to Airport Consultants/Request for Qualifications (2.9.3);  

Selections for Planning and Development Projects – Keep them Separate 

When a sponsor wants to complete planning and development projects, separate consultant solicitations 
are required.  Chapter 1 of the AC defines the services required for these types of projects but in general, 
the difference between them is as follows:  
 

Planning Projects Development Projects 
Require airport planning and environmental 
services for airport system and master plans, 
airport noise compatibility plans, environmental 
assessments, and related studies. 

Require basic A/E services for airport 
development (construction and equipment 
acquisition) and land acquisition projects.  
Generally involves architectural, engineering 
(design, bidding, and construction observation), 
and land acquisition services. 

 
By not performing separate selections, the sponsor may be eliminating otherwise qualified firms as 
some do not provide both planning and engineering services.  In addition, there may be a potential 
conflict of interest if, for example, the consultant is providing both planning and A/E services and in 
updating the airport master plan their objectivity “…may be compromised [as] the firm is in a position 
to establish development objectives for which the same firm will be tasked with engineering design 
services” per paragraph 2.3.3 of the AC.  The development projects may be in their best interest; not 
the sponsors. 

39



FAA Central Region Airports Division 
AIP Sponsor Guide 
January 5, 2018 
 
 
 

300-4 

b. Drafting and distributing the Notice/RFQ (2.9.3 and 2.9.4); and 
c. Evaluating, ranking, and selecting the most qualified consultant (2.9.12). 

 
Task 5.a.  Prepare a draft Notice to Airport Consultants/Request for Qualifications 
To obtain qualification and experience information from potentially qualified consultants for the proposed 
projects, the sponsor issues a Notice/RFQ inviting consultants to submit their Statement of Qualifications 
(SOQ).  At a minimum, the Notice/RFQ must: 

• Identify the airport where the proposed projects are planned. 
• Describe the proposed projects “…in sufficient detail so that all parties may adequately establish 

the type of services required to accomplish the work” per paragraph 2.7.2 of the AC.   
• Provide the year in which each proposed project is anticipated to begin. 
• Proved an estimated construction cost for each project. 
• Identify the services anticipated. 
• Convey how the selection will be made. 

 
The Notice/RFQ must also contain the following statement: ”The agreement(s) between the sponsor and 
the selected consultant will be subject to all applicable Federal Rules and Regulations as identified in AC 
150/5100-14E.  The most current version of the Federal Contract Provisions for A/E agreements will be 
attached to each agreement.”   
 
A sample Notice/RFQ is available here.  The Federal Contract Provisions for A/E Agreements attachment is 
available here. 
 
Task 5.b.  Drafting and distributing the Notice/RFQ 
We recommend first submitting a draft version for FAA review.  If necessary, revise the Notice/RFQ to 
address FAA comments and then advertise/distribute the Notice/RFQ in accordance with paragraphs 2.9.3 
and 2.9.4.  Provide a copy of the as-advertised version of the Notice/RFQ to the FAA. 
 
Task 5.c.  Evaluating, ranking, and selecting the most qualified consultant 
Section 2.9 of the AC provides general requirements for evaluating consultants.  Sponsors should not enter 
into the selection process with a pre-selection mentality.  Although the FAA cannot participate in the 
selection process or recommend consultants, we can provide a list of consultants who have performed 
similar projects if requested by the sponsor. 
 
Step 6.  Developing and Executing the Consultant Agreement 
This step of the consultant selection process includes the following tasks: 

a. Discussing and finalizing the scope of Professional Services (2.12), 
b. Estimating and evaluating the cost of Professional Services (2.13), 
c. Requesting the consultants cost proposal (2.14.2), compare it against the sponsor’s estimate (the 

IFE) (2.14.3), and conducting negotiations (2.14.4).  

40

https://www.faa.gov/airports/central/airports_resources/media/sample-notice-to-airport-consultants.docx
https://www.faa.gov/airports/central/aip/sponsor_guide/media/federal-provisions-attachment-for-ae-contracts.pdf


FAA Central Region Airports Division 
AIP Sponsor Guide 
January 5, 2018 
 
 
 

300-5 

Task 6.a – Discussing and finalizing the scope of Professional Services 
Before preparing and executing the agreement with the Consultant, we recommend sponsors conduct a 
conference with their Consultant and the FAA Program Manager to develop a detailed project scope, clearly 
define the professional services needed, and identity the fee type.  The FAA’s role here is to ensure that all 
services required for the projects have been included in the professional services agreement. 
 
Using the minutes of the conference, the Consultant can develop the draft scope of services (or draft 
agreement without costs) for the sponsor and FAA to review.  After the revised document has been 
submitted to the sponsor, the sponsor can start their costs analysis.  Section 3.8 of the AC provides 
information on the FAA’s role in reviewing agreements. 
 
Task 6.b – Estimating and evaluating the cost of Professional Services 
Before receiving the Consultant’s cost proposal, the sponsor must perform a cost analysis to estimate and 
evaluate the proposed cost of professional services.  To perform the cost analysis, the sponsor can utilize its 
own staff (if they have experience in estimating and negotiating the cost of professional services) or select 
an outside consultant.  The FAA cannot conduct the cost analysis for the sponsor.  As part of the cost 
analysis, the sponsor prepares an independent fee estimate (IFE) to evaluate and negotiate the cost of 
professional services proposed by the Consultant.  The end result of the cost analysis effort is the sponsor 
obtaining a fair and reasonable cost through negotiations with the Consultant. 
 
Regardless of who performs the cost analysis, it needs to be performed using one of two methods: the 
comparative method or the detailed method.  The selection of which method depends on the anticipated 
cost of the professional services agreement as follows: 

• If the cost is anticipated to be less than $100,000, the sponsor can perform the cost analysis using 
the comparative method or detailed method (your choice). 

• If the cost is anticipated to be $100,000 or more, the sponsor must use detailed method. 
 
Table 3-1 presents the comparative and detailed methods and the steps required for each.  For a visual 
representation of the cost analysis process, refer to Figure 3-1. 

  

Sponsor’s cost estimate is “independent” of the Consultant’s 

The word independent in the phrase Independent Fee Estimate does not mean the sponsor has to hire an 
outside consultant to review the proposed scope of services and develop a cost estimate.  It simply 
means the sponsor estimates the cost of the professional services independent of the Consultant’s effort 
of preparing their cost proposal. 

The Consultant shall not provide their cost proposal to the sponsor until the sponsor has first estimated 
the cost of the professional services and then requests the cost proposal from the Consultant.  Otherwise, 
the sponsor knows what the proposed cost is before they start/complete their cost analysis and the 
process is no longer independent. 

41



FAA Central Region Airports Division 
AIP Sponsor Guide 
January 5, 2018 
 
 
 

300-6 

Table 3-1.  Cost Analysis Methods 

Proposed 
Cost 

Less than $100,000 $100,000 or greater 

Perform Comparative Method Cost Analysis Detailed Method Cost Analysis 

Description The sponsor compares the proposed cost 
of the professional services against the 
cost of previous agreements.  At least one 
previous agreement should be for a 
similarly-sized project. 

The sponsor prepares a side-by-side 
comparison of their estimated cost of the 
professional services and the consultant’s 
cost proposal. 

Step 1 Prepare the Independent Fee Estimate 
(IFE).  This estimate should include the 
total cost and the subtotal cost of each 
service being provided.  At a minimum, the 
sponsor must estimate the following items 
in their IFE: 
• total direct labor hours and cost, 
• general/administrative overhead (%), 
• profit (%), 
• expenses, and 
• subconsultant costs 

The Comparative Method plus estimates of 
the hours, hourly rates, and costs for the 
individual tasks of the services being 
provided similar to the format presented in 
Appendix D of the AC. 

Step 2 Request the cost proposal from Consultant.  
The cost proposal format should be similar 
to that presented in Appendix D of the AC. 

Same as Comparative Method. 

Step 3 Evaluate the cost proposal against the IFE 
and conduct negotiations. 

Evaluate the cost proposal against the IFE 
(using a format similar to the format 
presented in Appendix E of the AC) and 
conduct negotiations. 

 
 
 
Step 6.c – Requesting the consultants cost proposal (2.14.2), comparing it against the IFE (2.14.3), and 

conducting negotiations (2.14.4). 
Section 2.14 of the AC provides general requirements for negotiating.  After the sponsor has completed its 
cost analysis and concluded negotiations with the Consultant, the FAA will review the agreement, the 
detailed cost proposal, and the record of negotiations (if requested) to make a determination on the 
reasonableness of cost.  This determination is based on the sponsor’s IFE.  Costs that are deemed 
unnecessary and unreasonable are not AIP Eligible.  This step is depicted in Figure 3-2. 

  

42



FAA Central Region Airports Division 
AIP Sponsor Guide 
January 5, 2018 
 
 
 

300-7 

Figure 3-1.  Cost Analysis Process 

 
 
 
Note.  The numbers adjacent to each symbol refer to the associated paragraph(s) in AC 150/5100-14E. 
  

Yes No

2.13.1

2.13.1 2.13.4
2.13.4

Yes No

2.13.3

2.13.3 2.13.3

2.14

Use the 
Detailed Method

Select an outside 
consultant to provide 

the IFE.

Obtain and IFE using 
Sponsor staff or an 
outside consultant.

Will the cost of 
the professional 
services be less 
than $100,000?

Use the
Comparative Method

or the 
Detailed Method  

Note:  FAA can require 
the Detailed Method 
regardless of cost of

the services.

Does the Sponsor have 
experience in estimating 
the cost of professional 

services, negotiating 
contracts?

Conduct Negotiations

43



FAA Central Region Airports Division 
AIP Sponsor Guide 
January 5, 2018 
 
 
 

300-8 

Figure 3-2.  Negotiations Process 

 
 
 
Note 1.  If the cost proposal and IFE are within 10 percent of each other, then the cost proposal should be 
considered fair and reasonable.  By and large, 10 percent is the industry standard. 

Note 2.  The numbers adjacent to each symbol refer to the associated paragraph(s) in AC 150/5100-14E. 

      2.14.2

2.14.1
2.14.3

No

 Yes

No Yes

Yes

See Note 1

If retained, may use 
outside consultant 

to assist in 

Sponsor evaluates 
the Consultant's cost 
proposal against the 

IFE.

Obtain detailed cost 
proposal from 

Consultant.

Sponsor documents 
cost comparison effort

Is the cost 
proposal 

within 10% 
of the IFE?

Prepare record of 
negotiations.  Submit 
to FAA if requested.

Negotiate with 
Consultant.  Review 

areas of scope 
misunderstanding 
and level of effort 

required to complete 
tasks.

If negotiations with
first-ranked 

consultant fail, 
Sponsor would 
negotiate with 
second-ranked 

consultant.

Sponsor and 
Consultant 
mutually 
agree?

Complete the IFE

44



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Professional Services      
Selection Policy 
November 17, 2020 

45



I. PURPOSE

The purpose of the Professional Services Selection Policy (Policy) is to establish procedures and 

standards for the preparation, execution, and administration of contracts for professional or specialized 

services provided to the City of Riverton (City).  Professional or specialized services for the purpose of 

the Policy include, but are not limited to, engineering, architectural, and surveying services.   

II. STATEMENT

In accordance with principles of the Brooks Act (40 U.S.C 1101 – 1104), the Professional Architectural, 

Engineering, and Land Survey Services Procurement Act (W.S. 9-2-1027), and 23 Code of Federal 

Regulations Part 172 entitled Procurement, Management, and Administration of Engineering and Design 

Related Services, the City will implement the Policy to ensure a qualified firm is obtained through an 

equitable selection process and the prescribed work is properly accomplished in a timely manner and at 

a fair and reasonable cost.  

III. PROCUREMENT METHODS

The City is committed to ensure qualified firms have the opportunity to participate in professional or 

specialized service contracts.  Four (4) procurement methods are available to the City to solicit, evaluate, 

and select qualified firms.   

1. Competitive Negotiation (Qualification-Based Selection) Procurement

The City will use a competitive negotiation method for the procurement of professional or

specialized services.  The solicitation, evaluation, ranking, selection, and negotiation will comply

with the qualification-based selection procurement procedure outlined in Section IV of the

Policy.

2. Small Purchasing Threshold Procurement

The City may procure professional or specialized services without the qualification-based

selection procurement procedure as outlined in Section IV of the Policy when a contract does

not exceed $25,000.  The following restrictions shall apply to the use of this procurement

method:

a. The scope of work, project phases, and contract requirements shall not be broken into

smaller components solely to permit the use of small purchase procedures.

b. A minimum of three proposals must be solicited, reviewed, and evaluated.  In cases

where only two qualified firms respond to the solicitation, the City may proceed with

evaluation and selection as long as the solicitation did not contain conditions or

requirements which arbitrarily limited competition. The City may pursue procurement

following the noncompetitive method when competition is determined to be

inadequate and it is determined to not be feasible or practical to compete again under a

new solicitation.

46



 

 

 

3. Non-Competitive Emergency Conditions Procurement 

When an emergency occurs, the City Administrator or their designee may waive procedures of 

the Policy, or portions thereof.  In an emergency, a professional or specialized services firm may 

be selected, negotiations conducted, and a contract executed at the direction of the City 

Administrator or designee as necessary to address the emergency conditions.  The City 

Administrator or designee shall submit justification for emergency selection to the City Council. 

4. Non-Competitive Sole Source Procurement 

 

Procedures of the Policy, or portions thereof, may be waived by the City Administrator or their 

designee for the sole source selection of a firm under any of the following conditions: 

a. Sole source selection may be used when the service is available only from a single 

source. 

b. Sole source selection may be used if, after solicitation of a number of sources, 

competition is determined to be inadequate.  

c. Sole source selection may be used when it has been determined that there is an 

emergency which does not permit time to conduct contract negotiations. 

 

Sole source selection may only be used when it is in the public interest and economically 

advantageous to the City. Selection of a sole source Firm will be contingent upon satisfactory 

negotiation for the service.  The City Administrator or designee shall submit justification for the 

sole source selection to the City Council. 

IV. QUALIFICATION-BASED SELECTION PROCEDURE        

All competitive negotiation procurements for professional or specialized services will follow the 

prescribed steps to ensure consistency, transparency, and equity in the process.  Steps to solicit and 

award contracts are: 

1. Solicit Letters of Interest and Statements of Qualification 

2. Assemble a Selection Committee 

3. Select a Qualified Firm 

4. Negotiate the Contract 

5. Execute the Contract 

1.    Solicit Letters of Interest and Statements of Qualification 

The City Administrator or their designee is responsible for determining when professional or specialized 

services are required by the City.  Following the determination of need, the City shall solicit Letters of 

Interest and Statements of Qualification to determine firms interested and capable of performing 

professional or specialized services within the desired time period.  Solicitation shall be by published 

advertisement in a newspaper with general circulation at least once each week for two (2) consecutive 

47



 

 

weeks prior to the initiation of selection procedures.  The City may advertise via its website, social media 

accounts, or any other print or digital means it determines necessary.   

The City shall be responsible to prepare the solicitation of Letters of Interest and Statements of 

Qualification.  The solicitation should include, but not be limited to, the following information: 

1. General description of the proposed project and location (if applicable); 

2. Preliminary types and scopes of services that reflect a clear, accurate, and detailed description 

of the technical requirements for the services to be rendered; 

3. Anticipated length and schedule of contract; 

4. Method(s) of payment; 

5. Estimated procurement schedule; and 

6. Selection procedures and evaluation criteria used in the selection process. 

Letters of Interest and Statements of Qualification shall be unpriced and shall not include any cost of 

service components (e.g. consultant fee proposal, direct salaries or wages, direct or indirect costs or 

rates).  The solicitation may request interested firms to submit cost of service or fee proposals in a 

separate and sealed envelope, which may be considered later in the qualification-based selection 

process. 

Letters of Interest and Statements of Qualification shall be submitted to the City by the date and time 

designated in the solicitation.  Deviation from prescribed terms in the advertised solicitation may result 

in an automatic disqualification of a firm. 

2.    Assemble a Selection Committee 

The City shall appoint a selection committee specific to the solicited professional or specialized services.  

The committee shall consist of a minimum of three (3) members, but generally not more than five (5) 

members.  Each member of the committee shall ensure he or she does not have a conflict of interest, 

real or apparent, to the selection process or solicited service.  If such a conflict of interest exists, or 

arises during the process, the member shall be immediately excused from the selection committee. 

The purpose of the selection committee is to evaluate Letters of Interest and Statements of 

Qualification based on the criteria established and published within the public solicitation as it pertains 

to the type and scope of work.  The committee, in conjunction with the City Administrator or their 

designee, is responsible to make a recommendation to the City Council for the approval of a 

professional or specialized service firm.  The City Council has final contract approval authority. 

3.    Select a Qualified Firm 

Evaluation of interested firms is based on the factors and respective weights specifically stated in the 

solicitation, and any other data pertinent to the firm under consideration.  Qualification-based factors 

shall be utilized to assess the firm’s qualifications and competency, tailored to the proposed type or 

scope of work.  These may include, but are not limited, to the following: 

48



 

 

1. Experience specific to the required professional or specialized services; 

2. The ability of professional personnel; 

3. Past performance; 

4. Workload capacity; 

5. Ability to meet project schedule; 

6. Technical approach (e.g. project understanding, innovative concepts or alterations, quality 

control procedures) 

7. Volume of work previously awarded to the firm; 

8. The equitable distribution of contracts among firms considered qualified. 

Two (2) specific non-qualification-based evaluation factors may be used, if appropriate, but together 

cannot exceed ten percent (10%) of the total weighted evaluation.  These two factors are: 

1. A local presence, where that presence will add value to the quality or efficiency of project 

delivery, but will still allow for the consideration of a sufficient number of qualified firms; 

2. The participation of qualified and certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) consultants 

or subconsultants may be used as a nominal evaluation criterion where appropriate in 

accordance with 49 CFR Part 26 and the Wyoming Department of Transportation’s DBE 

program. The Firm, sub-consultant, and sub-firm shall not discriminate on the basis of race, 

religion, color, creed, national origin, age, disability/handicap or sex in the performance of a 

contract. 

The selection procedure initiates with the selection committee reviewing and evaluating all responsive 

Letters of Interest and Statements of Qualification.  This review and evaluation is based on the factors 

and respective weights specifically stated in the solicitation.  The committee scores and ranks in order of 

preference the most qualified firms for the solicited professional or specialized service.  The committee 

shall not use any cost of service component when evaluating, scoring, or ranking Letters of Interest and 

Statements of Qualifications.  The committee may elect to interview all or some of the interested firms 

prior to establishing the order of preference. 

Once the selection committee scores and ranks each responsive Letter of Interest and Statement of 

Qualification, the City Administrator or their designee shall review the committee’s order of preference 

of the most qualified firms.  The City Administrator or designee may either present the committee’s 

highest rated firm to the City Council for consideration, or interview a minimum of the top two (2), but 

not more than the top three (3), rated firms for further analysis.   

If the City Administrator or designee chooses to interview the top rated firms, an interview committee 

consisting of three (3) City staff members shall be established.  Interviews performed by the committee 

will include, but not be limited to, discussion of the firm’s qualifications, approaches to the solicited 

work, ability to furnish the required services, use of alternatives, and an estimated fee based on the 

City’s preliminary description of the type and scope of work.  Prior to performing interviews, the 

interview committee will establish evaluation factors and respective weights to quantify its analysis.  

The firm’s estimated fee may be used as a one of the weighted evaluation factors.  The committee shall 

49



 

 

rank the interviewed firms and recommend the City Administrator or designee present to the City 

Council the highest ranked firm for consideration.   

4.    Negotiate a Contract 

After completing the selection process, the City Council shall direct the City Administrator or their 

designee to negotiate a contract with the selected firm.  A meeting with the selected firm shall be 

scheduled to discuss the scope of the proposed professional or specialized services.  Once the details of 

the scope of services are mutually resolved, the firm will prepare a cost proposal to perform the 

required services.  The firm’s cost proposal shall be supported by a breakdown of the workdays required 

to perform each of the services contained in the scope of work and the salary range/rate for each 

classification of personnel utilized.  The firm’s cost proposal shall include supporting documentation for 

payroll additives, direct costs, indirect costs, fees, and overhead, as described.  Upon receipt of the 

firm’s proposal, the City Administrator or designee, shall review the submitted material and determine 

both the reasonableness of the proposal and the areas of substantial difference, which may require 

further discussion and negotiation.  The City Administrator shall use all resources available to conduct 

effective negotiations and may prepare an in-house estimate of the scope of work as a method of 

comparison. 

If the City Administrator or their designee is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the selected 

firm at a price determined to be fair and reasonable, negations with that firm shall be terminated.  The 

City Administrator or designee shall then begin negotiations with the firm ranked second in the order of 

preference.  If the City Administrator or designee fails to negotiate a contract with the second ranked 

firm, he shall terminate negotiations and then begin negotiations with the next available firm in order of 

preference.   

If the City Administrator or their designee is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with any of the 

top rated firms, they may do any of the following: 

1. Select additional firms in order of their competence and qualifications and continue 

negotiations.   

2. Suspend all negotiations and prepare another solicitation for Letters of Interest and Statements 

of Qualification. 

3. Exercise the sole source procurement provision as defined in Section III. 

In addition to the above referenced remedies, the City Administrator or designee shall additionally 

review the professional or specialized services under negotiation to determine the possible cause for 

failure to achieve  

VI. Execute the Contract            

When a mutually accepted scope of service, fee, and contract is negotiated between the City and the 

selected firm, the City Administrator or their designee will present the agreement to the City Council for 

50



 

 

final approval.  The Mayor or their designee will then execute the contract.  Revisions to the approved 

contract will follow provisions of the respective agreement and applicable City policies.   

 

V. EXTERNAL FUNDING SOURCES          

When professional or specialized services, or their resulting projects, are supported by external funding 

agencies, the applicable laws, rules, or regulations of those agencies shall take precedence over 

conflicting provisions of the Policy, whether in whole or in part.   

 

51


	1 11-17-20 Regular Council Meeting
	1) Call to order.
	2) Pledge of Allegiance.
	3) Invocation.
	4) Roll call: Ward I: Kyle Larson, Cory Rota
	Ward II: Karla Borders, Rebecca Schatza
	Ward III: Mike Bailey, Tim Hancock

	8 11-03-2020 Regular Council Meeting Minutes kw
	8.1 CASH RECEIPTING OCTOBER_2020
	OCTOBER

	8.2 2020-11-13 Memo - Re-plat Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition
	1. Memo Replat Lot 1, Larsen Family Addition
	2. Larsen Family Addition, Lot 1 Replat
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	3. Larsen Family Addition, Lot 1 Replat Utilities
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	9 Airport land sale 11-13-2020
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	9.1 RIW IP Lot 1
	9.2 Dolcater PO
	9.3 propertyletter.pdf
	10 MAtt Coughanor apointment
	CITY COUNCIL ACTION MEMO
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	11 Megan Sims - Purchase of Hot Air Balloon
	CITY COUNCIL ACTION MEMO
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council





